
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, September 1, 2023 ◊ 10:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation - Pastor Jeff Birch, Lake Oconee Presbyterian Church  

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

 

Mill Rate Public Hearing 
5. Presentation of Proposed 2023 Mill Rate (staff-CM & Fin) 

6. Comments from the Public 

7. Comments from Commissioners and/or Staff 

 

Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 
8. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapters 22 (Businesses), 66 

(Zoning), and Appendix D (Short Term Vacation Rental) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 

10. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - August 15, 2023 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - August 25, 2023 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT FTA 5311 - FY2024 Transit Operating, Small and Large 

Capital, and Mobility Management Contract (staff-Transit) 

11. Discussion and possible action on Fire Department boat houses (staff-Fire) 

12. Setting of Qualifying Fees for 2023 Special Election (staff-Finance) 

13. Discussion and possible action on 112 Gloria Drive (staff-CM & CA) 

14. Ratification of the Board of Education Mill Rate and Authorization for Chairman to sign Tax Levy 

Resolution (staff-CM & Finance) 

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2023 Mill Rate for Incorporated and 

Unincorporated County Maintenance and Operation (staff-CM & Finance) 

16. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2023 Mill Rate for Special Service District (staff-

CM & Finance) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
17. County Manager Report 

18. County Attorney Report 

19. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
20. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

8. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Chapters 22 (Businesses), 

66 (Zoning), and Appendix D (Short Term Vacation Rental)

2



 

Page 1 of 10 

 

ORDINANCE  

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTERS 22, 66, & APPENDIX D 

OF THE CODE OF PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA  

 

 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioners (“Board”) presently 

regulates the use of residential zoned properties and structures for short term vacation rental 

within the County;  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board, pursuant to the police power granted by the laws of the 

State of Georgia, finds that such regulations protect and promote the safety, health, and 

general welfare of the citizens of the County; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires, following receipt of evidence concerning the 

impact such use has within the County, to amend those ordinances regulating the operation, 

use, and licensure of short term vacation rentals within the unincorporated areas of Putnam 

County; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUTNAM 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, HEREBY ORDAIN as follows:  

 

SECTION 1: That Chapter 22 shall be amended to include the following:  

 

Section 22-121 – Short term vacation rental license  

 

a. For the purposes of this chapter, a short term vacation rental is defined as the renting 

or leasing of a single-family dwelling unit, not including a boarding house, where 

the term of occupancy, possession, or tenancy is 30 consecutive calendar days or 

less.  Renting or leasing, as used herein, means the payment of compensation, 

money, rent, or other, bargained for consideration in exchange for occupancy, 

possession, or use of the property.  A short term vacation rental license shall not be 

required for a residence offered for a single rental period of time in a calendar year 

of no more than 14 days in duration. 

 

b. No person or entity shall rent, lease or otherwise exchange for compensation all or 

any portion of a dwelling unit as short-term vacation rental without first obtaining 

a short-term rental license pursuant to the regulations contained in this Chapter. 

 

c. Any license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be valid for a term of one calendar 

year, with the exception that all licenses issued after October 1 of any given 

calendar year shall be valid until December 31 of the proceeding calendar year. 

 

d. No licensee shall transfer the right to operate under any license issued under this 

chapter to any other person or entity by lease, agreement, or any other contract. 

 

3



 

Page 2 of 10 

 

e. No license issued under this Chapter may be operated or shall have any legal effect 

at any location other than that for which it is issued. 

 

f. The maximum day or night occupancy for any license issued pursuant to this 

Chapter shall be two persons per bedroom plus two additional persons per 

residence, but no rental unit shall have a maximum occupancy greater than 12, with 

the exception that any licenses issued prior to _______ ___, 2023 (insert date new 

ordinances are approved) which are in excess of the maximum occupancy shall be 

allowed to remain at such occupancy unless such license is relinquished, is revoked, 

or structural changes to the rental unit necessitate a reduction in occupancy for 

safety reasons, as determined by the County Clerk, or their designee. 

 

g. Nothing in this chapter shall be deemed to alter, affect, supersede or conflict with 

the requirements of any state or federal law, the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances, or any applicable private covenants or third-party contractual 

obligations regarding the prohibition or limitation of the use of any residential 

property as a short term vacation rental unit.   

 

h. Prior to issuance of any license pursuant to this chapter, an applicant must be in 

compliance with all applicable requirements under federal, state, and/or county 

ordinances.  Compliance with state and county statute and ordinances shall 

specifically include the requirement that the applicant or business of the applicant 

is not delinquent in the payment of any tax or fee owed the county, including, but 

not limited to, personal or real property taxes, any occupational taxes, sales and use 

taxes, or payment for any required permit necessary for operation of applicant's 

business.  For purposes of this section, any tax that has been paid, formally appealed 

to the proper authorities, or is being paid pursuant to a plan authorized and approved 

by the appropriate tax or revenue commissioner shall not be deemed delinquent. 

 

i. The application process, management, and enforcement of the issuance and 

regulation of short term vacation rentals shall be the responsibility of the County 

Clerk, or their designee. 

 

Section 22-122 – Short Term Vacation Rental Overlay Sector  

 

a. Overlay sector created.  The following overlay sectors are hereby created within 

Putnam County and shall consists of the following described real properties: 

                                                                       

i. Sector 1 – R-1R 

ii. Sector 2 – R-1, R-2, RM-1, RM-3 

iii. Sector 3 – AG 

 

b. Purpose.  The purpose of the STVROS is to regulate short term vacation rentals on 

specific parcels that are permitted within certain sectors and to otherwise reduce 

the number of transient guests. 

 

4



 

Page 3 of 10 

 

c. Capacity.  For each overlay sector, the following capacity limits are hereby 

established:                             

 

i. Sector 1 – With the exception of pre-existing non-conforming uses, no short 

term vacation rentals shall be permitted in Sector 1. 

ii. Sectors 2 & 3 – For parcels of land within these Sectors, short term vacation 

rental use is limited to no more than 400 total licenses, with such number to 

include those pre-existing non-conforming licenses issued in Sector 1.  

Upon issuance of the maximum allowed licenses, any application for 

licensure thereafter shall be waitlisted and considered for approval in the 

order in which they are received by the County Clerk.  In the event of non-

renewal or revocation of any existing licenses, the County Clerk shall 

review, process, and issue licensure to the waitlisted applications which 

conform with the regulations herein. 

 

Section 22-123 – Short term vacation rental regulations 

 

Any and all holders of any licenses issued pursuant to this Chapter shall abide by the 

following regulations: 

 

a. Licensees shall not allow occupants to violate any federal, state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances, including, but not limited to, sections 29-1 and 32-20, 

and shall maintain compliance with all requirements regarding the appointed short 

term vacation rental agent. 

 

b. All marketing and advertising of the licensed premises shall include the prominent 

display of the number of the license issued pursuant to this chapter, and such license 

number shall be prominently displayed on the licensed premises.  All marketing 

and advertising shall include notification of the maximum occupancy and 

maximum numbers of vehicles allowed. 

 

c. A licensee may retain a managing agency, managing agent, operator, representative 

or local contact person to comply with the requirements of this section, including 

without limitation, the licensing of the short term vacation rental, the management 

of the short term vacation rental and the compliance with the conditions of this 

license. The owner of the short term vacation rental is responsible for compliance 

with the provisions of this section and the failure of an agent, representative, or 

local contact person to comply with this section shall be deemed noncompliance by 

the owner. 

 

d. Each licensee shall designate a short term vacation rental agent who has access and 

authority to assume management of the short term vacation rental unit.  The 

licensee may be designated as the short term vacation rental agent.    The name of 

the property owner and the short term vacation rental agent shall, along with their 

email addresses and telephone numbers at which the agent may be reached on a 24-

hour, seven days a week, basis must be displayed with the short term rental license.  

5



 

Page 4 of 10 

 

The short term vacation rental agent shall be required to respond to the location of 

the short term rental within one hour after being notified of the existence of a 

violation of this chapter or any other provision of this Code, or any disturbance 

requiring immediate remedy or abatement.  A licensee must immediately notify the 

County Clerk, or their designee, in writing upon a change of short term vacation 

rental agent or any change in such agent’s contact information, and such 

notification will be through forms prescribed by the County Clerk within 5 days of 

any change in agent or contact information. 

 

e. A copy of a valid short term rental license shall be posted in a conspicuous location 

inside the main entrance of the short term rental and shall be presented by the 

owner, agent, renter, or occupant of the premises when requested by the Sheriff, 

any Deputy Sheriff, fire marshal or official, or Code Enforcement Officer.  The 

contact information for the short rental vacation rental license holder and agent, if 

applicable, must be prominently displayed within the premises at all times.   

 

f. The licensee must furnish the renter of the property a copy of this ordinance and a 

contract specifying the terms of the rental which will include the maximum number 

of persons allowed on the premises at any time.  Said contract will also specify the 

maximum number of vehicles allowed on the property at any time during the rental 

period.  Said contract will further prescribe the maximum number of boats or 

vessels that may be docked or moored on any body of water adjacent to the short 

term vacation rental unit.  The property owner, agent, or occupant of the short term 

vacation rental, when requested to do so, will, present a copy of the rental contract 

to the Sheriff, any Deputy Sheriff, fire marshal or official, or Code Enforcement 

Officer. 

 

g. The maximum day or night occupancy for any license issued pursuant to this 

Chapter shall be two persons per bedroom plus two additional persons per 

residence, but no rental unit shall have a maximum occupancy greater than 12, with 

the exception that any licenses issued prior to _______ ___, 2023 (insert date new 

ordinances are approved) which are in excess of the maximum occupancy shall be 

allowed to remain at such occupancy unless such license is relinquished, is revoked, 

or structural changes to the rental unit necessitate a reduction in occupancy for 

safety reasons, as determined by the County Clerk, or their designee. 

 

h. The presence of more people on the premises of a short term vacation rental than 

the maximum number specified in the rental contract shall be a violation of this 

ordinance and the person(s) named in the rental contract shall be subject to being 

cited for said violation.  The Sheriff, any Deputy Sheriff, fire marshal or official, or 

Code Enforcement Officer may order the excess numbers of persons to vacate the 

premises and any person refusing to do so shall be subject to arrest and prosecution 

for Disorderly Conduct as provided for in Section 29-1(t) of the Putnam County 

Code of Ordinances. 

 

6



 

Page 5 of 10 

 

i. It shall be unlawful for any occupant of a short term vacation rental to make, 

continue or cause to be made or continued any excessive, unnecessary, or unusually 

loud noise which disturbs the peace or quiet of anyone in the neighborhood or 

which causes discomfort or annoyance to any reasonable person of normal 

sensitiveness.  All electronic devices with speakers, including televisions, radios 

and stereo systems must be operated within the enclosed confines of the primary 

residence between the hours of 10:00 PM and 9:00 AM.  The frequent or continuous 

barking, or other means of communication by animals that disturbs the comfort or 

repose of the residents of any residential neighborhood shall not be allowed. 

 

j. The minimum age of the person signing the rental agreement is 25 and such person 

shall be responsible for adherence to all regulations in this section by all occupants 

staying at the short term vacation rental.  The person signing the rental agreement 

shall be required to be present at the short term vacation rental within one hour 

upon request by the Sheriff, any Deputy Sheriff, fire marshal or official, or Code 

Enforcement Officer during the rental period. 

 

k. No vehicles shall be parked on any public or private right of way and all parking 

shall be consistent with the parking plan submitted with the license application.  

The parking plan, which shall be approved as part of licensure, shall be sufficient 

to allow adequate parking for the maximum occupancy of the rental unit.  No person 

occupying a short term vacation rental shall park any vehicle illegally on any street 

or road, nor park adjacent to any such street in a manner that would prevent or 

hinder any emergency vehicle from traveling thereupon.  No person occupying a 

short term vacation rental shall park on any other person’s property, or block any 

driveway of any other person or property owner without permission to do so.  No 

occupant of a short term vacation rental shall dock or otherwise tie any boat or 

vessel to the dock of any other property owner without the permission of the 

property owner.  The Sheriff, any Deputy Sheriff, or Code Enforcement Officer 

may impound any vehicle found parking in such a manner. 

 

l. The presence of more vehicles on the premises of a short term vacation rental, or 

more boats or vessels docked or moored on a body of water adjacent to the 

premises, than the maximum number specified in the rental contract shall be a 

violation of this ordinance and the person(s) named in the rental contract shall be 

subject to being cited for said violation. The Sheriff, any Deputy Sheriff, or Code 

Enforcement Officer may order the owners or operators of the excess number of 

vehicles, boats or vessels to remove them from the property and any person refusing 

to do may be cited for violating this ordinance.  The Sheriff, any Deputy Sheriff, or 

Code Enforcement Officer may further impound the excess vehicles, boats, or 

vessels that are not removed upon a request to do so. 

 

m. No renter shall go upon any adjacent properties or the common areas of the 

neighborhood community unless specifically authorized in advance and in writing 

by the owner of the short term vacation rental property. 

 

7



 

Page 6 of 10 

 

n. No accessory structures shall be used for any overnight occupancy. 

 

o. Any and all pets present at the premises must be leashed or contained at all times. 

 

p. The premises may not be utilized for any special event, as defined by this Code, 

and there shall be no admission charged by the renter for access to the premises. 

 

q. No renter shall be allowed to sublet the premises or any rooms during rental. 

 

r. No renter shall be allowed to place, site, or occupy any recreational vehicles or 

campers on the premises during rental. 

 

s. All external lighting shall be directed within the parcel and shall not be allowed to 

impact adjacent properties.  

 

t. All garbage and trash must be stored in a trash container or appropriate receptacle 

and shall not be placed within or adjacent to any private or public right of way for 

a period of time greater than 48 hours. 

 

u. An interconnected and hard-wired smoke detection and notification system, with 

battery backup, is required and must be operable and in good working order at all 

times. 

 

v. Subject to state law, the use of fireworks is prohibited at all short term vacation 

rentals. 

 

w. No licensee or person occupying a short term vacation rental shall engage in any 

behavior on the premises on the rental property that constitutes a violation Section 

29-1 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Section 22-124 – Short term vacation rental application 

 

Applicants shall submit, on an annual basis, an application for a short-term vacation rental 

license to the County Clerk. Such application shall include: 

 

a. The name, address, telephone and email address of the owner(s) of record of the 

dwelling unit for which a license is sought;  

 

b. The address of the dwelling unit to be used as a short term vacation rental; 

 

c. The name, address, telephone number and email address of the short term vacation 

rental agent, which shall constitute his or her 24-hour contact information, and who 

shall be at least 25 years old, and shall be able to be present onsite within one hour 

of contact; 

 

8



 

Page 7 of 10 

 

d. The owner's sworn acknowledgement that he or she has received a copy of this 

section, has reviewed it and understands its requirements; 

 

e. The number and location of parking spaces allotted to the premises and site plan 

indicating designated parking areas; 

 

f. The owner's agreement to use his or her best efforts to assure that use of the 

premises by short term vacation rental occupants will not disrupt the neighborhood, 

and will not interfere with the rights of neighboring property owners to the quiet 

enjoyment of their properties and will abide by all other short term vacation rental 

regulations, and will abide by any and all other regulations established by this Code. 

 

g. Any other information that this Chapter requires the owner to provide to the county 

as part of an application for a short term vacation rental permit. The County Clerk, 

or their designee, shall have the authority to obtain additional information from the 

applicant as necessary to achieve the objectives of this chapter. 

 

h. If the rental agent changes, the property owner shall notify the County within five 

business days. 

 

i. Application fees shall be as established by the County Clerk. 

 

Section 22-125 – Citations for violations; revocation of license; penalty 

 

a. To ensure the continued application of the intent and purpose of this chapter, the 

planning department, through available Code Enforcement officers or the Sheriff 

through his/her deputies, shall notify the holder of a short term vacation rental 

license of all instances in which acts or omission of the owner, agent, or any 

individual results in a citation for a code violation or other legal infraction.  

Citations may be served upon the short term vacation rental owner, rental agent, or 

any individual violating the provisions of this ordinance.  Each individual code 

violation, regardless of whether citation for such violation is served collectively 

with any other violation, and each day or instance of a violation, shall be treated as 

a separate and independent violation.   

 

b. The planning department shall maintain in each short term vacation rental location 

file a record of all code violation charges, founded accusations and convictions 

occurring at or relating to a short term vacation rental unit. When a license holder 

has accumulated three violations for a particular property within a period of 12 

consecutive months, the County shall revoke any issued license and reject all 

applications for the subject premises for a period of 12 consecutive months.  A 

license following revocation may be reissued subject to the district capacity 

requirements established in Section 22-122(c).    

 

c. If a short term vacation rental applicant has been cited and found to be in violation 

of any zoning, building, health or life safety code provision, the owner must 

9



 

Page 8 of 10 

 

demonstrate compliance with the applicable code prior to being eligible to receive 

a short term vacation rental license. 

 

d. Citations for any of this Chapter shall be heard in the same fashion as other 

violations of this Code. In addition to the available fines, a court of competent 

jurisdiction may impose any other available remedy and may suspend the subject 

license for one violation for the remainder of the license term, regardless of whether 

the subject property had previously been subject to a violation. 

 

e. Violations of this chapter shall be punishable by a fine not to exceed $1,000 and/or 

six months confinement in the Putnam County Jail and shall be subject to the 

following suspensions: 

 

1. Second violation within the preceding 12 months: 30 days suspension of 

license. 

 

2. Third violation within the preceding 12 months: Suspension of license pursuant 

to subsection (b). 

 

f. Nothing in this section shall limit the County from enforcement of its Code, state 

or federal law by any other legal remedy available to the County. Nothing in this 

section shall be construed to limit or supplant the power of any county inspector, 

deputy marshal or other duly empowered officer under the County’s ordinances, 

rules and regulations and the authority granted under state law, as amended, to take 

necessary action, consistent with the law, to protect the public from property which 

constitutes a public nuisance or to abate a nuisance by any other lawful means of 

proceedings. 

 

Section 22-126 – Appeal 

 

(a) A person aggrieved by the County’s denial of a short term vacation rental license 

may appeal the decision to the Board of Commissioners. The appeal must be filed 

with the County Manager's office in writing, within 15 calendar days after the 

adverse action and it shall contain a concise statement of the reasons for the appeal.  

 

(b) The Board of Commissioners shall consider the appeal within 30 days after receipt 

by the County Manager of a request unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

County and aggrieved party. All interested parties shall have the right to be 

represented by counsel, to present testimony and evidence, and to cross-examine 

witnesses. The Board of Commissioners shall render a determination, which will 

constitute a final ruling on the application. 

 

SECTION 2:  That Chapter 29-1 shall be amended to include the following:  

 

(m) Any person who by and in any manner, creates loud noises or engages in any conduct, 

that disturbs or otherwise interferes with the peace and tranquility of the public. 

10



 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 

(t)  Any person who refuses to leave the premises of a short term vacation rental property 

when ordered or requested to do so as prescribed for in Section 22-123 of the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances.  

 

SECTION 3: That Sections 66-72 (AG-1), 66-81 (R-1), 66-84 (R-2), 66-90 (RM-1), 66-

96 (RM-3), and 66-119 (R-PUD) shall be amended to include the following use: “Short 

Term Vacation Rental” 

 

SECTION 4:  That Section 66-20. – Definitions. shall be amended to include the following 

definition:  Short term vacation rental means the renting or leasing of a single-family 

dwelling unit, not including a boarding house, where the term of occupancy, possession, 

or tenancy is 30 consecutive calendar days or less.  Renting or leasing, as used herein, 

means the payment of compensation, money, rent, or other, bargained for consideration in 

exchange for occupancy, possession, or use of the property.  A short term vacation rental 

license shall not be required for a residence offered for a single rental period of time in a 

calendar year of no more than 14 days in duration. 

 

SECTION 5: That Appendix D of the Code of Ordinances be repealed in full.  

 

That any ordinances or resolutions as adopted by this Board which are in conflict 

with these ordinances are hereby repealed and rendered ineffective. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this ordinance has been duly adopted by the governing 

authority of Putnam County, Georgia on the ___ day of ___________, 2023.  

 

 

  

      _________________________ 

      Chairman 

 

11



 

Page 10 of 10 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an original ordinance 

adopted by the Putnam County Board of Commissioners on the ____ day of 

______________, 2023. 

 

 In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and affix the seal of Putnam County, 

this ____day of _______________, 2023. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      County Clerk 

 

[Affix Seal] 

 

 

 

 

12



File Attachments for Item:

10. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - August 15, 2023 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - August 25, 2023 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT FTA 5311 - FY2024 Transit Operating, Small and Large 

Capital, and Mobility Management Contract (staff-Transit)

13



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 6  

August 15, 2023   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, August 15, 2023 ◊ 6:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, August 15, 2023 at 

approximately 6:00 p.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Tom Watkins 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Deputy County Clerk Donna Todd 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Sharp called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m.  

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda  

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation 

Pastor Joe Ezzard, Smithboro Baptist Church, gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (JW) 

Commissioner Wooten led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

  

14



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 6  

August 15, 2023   

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Peyton Robinson to rezone 1.1 acres at 905 Harmony Road from C-1 to C-2 

[Map 102D, Parcel 044, District 3] 

Attorney Tom Watkins read the rules for public comments 

Mr. Peyton Robinson spoke in support of the request.  No one signed in to speak against this 

item. 

Planning & Development staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 1.1 acres at 905 

Harmony Road from C-1 to C-2 [Map 102D, Parcel 044, District 3].  

Motion to approve the request by Peyton Robinson to rezone 1.1 acres at 905 Harmony 

Road from C-1 to C-2 [Map 102D, Parcel 044, District 3]. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

Items 6 and 8 were handled together. 

6. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman Jr. to rezone 8.85 acres at 886 

Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to C-2 [Map 087, Part of Parcel 028, District 4] 

8. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 4.71 acres on 

Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to C-2 [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4] 

Mr. Steven Rowland spoke in support of items 6, 7, and 8.  No one signed in to speak against 

these items. 

The Planning & Development staff recommendation for items 6 and 8 was for approval to rezone 

8.85 acres at 886 Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to C-2. [Map 087, Part of Parcel 028, District 

4] and 4.71 acres on Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 029, District 4] 

with the following condition: 

1. The developer shall develop and maintain a 50-foot undisturbed buffer or berm along 

the property lines that abut Map 087, Parcel 032 as stated in Section 66-107(g) of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

Motion to approve the requests by Steven A. Rowland, Agent for Norman E. Coleman, Jr., 

to rezone 8.85 acres at 886 Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to C-2. [Map 087, Part of 

Parcel 028] and 4.71 acres on Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to C-2. [Map 087, Parcel 

029] with the following condition: 

1. The developer shall develop and maintain a 50-foot undisturbed buffer or berm 

along the property lines that abut Map 087, Parcel 032 as stated in Section 66-

107(g) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

  

15



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 6  

August 15, 2023   

 

7. Request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to rezone 47.81 acres at 886 

Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to AG [Map 087, Part of Parcel 028, District 4] 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 47.81 acres at 886 Milledgeville Road from C-

1/C-2 to AG. [Map 087, Part of Parcel 028, District 4].   

Motion to approve the request by Steven A. Rowland, agent for Norman E. Coleman to 

rezone 47.81 acres at 886 Milledgeville Road from C-1/C-2 to AG [Map 087, Part of Parcel 

028] 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

Mill Rate Public Hearing 
9. Presentation of Proposed 2023 Mill Rate (staff-CM & Fin) 

County Manager Van Haute reviewed the proposed property tax increase. He advised that the 

board has tentatively adopted a millage rate which will require an increase in property taxes by 

7.17 percent. This tentative increase will result in a millage rate of 6.400 mills, an increase of 

.428 mills. Without this tentative tax increase, the millage rate will be no more than 5.972 mills. 

The proposed tax increase for a home with a fair market value of $300,000 is approximately 

$47.08 and the proposed tax increase for non-homestead property with a fair market value of 

$225,000 is approximately $38.52.  

  

10. Comments from the Public 

Mr. Billy Webster reminded the board that he spoke at the last mill rate public hearing and his 

opinion is still the same. He commented that the past 6 years had balanced budgets without mill 

rate increases. He also suggested that the budget public hearing should come before the mill rate 

public hearing, for future reference.  

 

Mr. Charles Gray commented that property values have increased, and inflation has devastated a 

lot of budgets. He stated that people on fixed incomes make up a lot of the county and that the 

board should consider the impact of a tax increase and possibly no tax at all for fixed income 

families. 

 

Ms. Jennifer Ray commented that the board should sharpen their pencils and work with the 

money that they have.  

 

Mr. Charles Ray signed in to speak but passed.  

 

11. Comments from Commissioners and/or Staff 

None 

 

Budget Public Hearing 
12. Presentation of Proposed FY24 Budget (staff-CM & Fin) 

County Manager Van Haute presented the proposed FY24 budget at $25,449,731 with $258,363 

appropriated from the fund balance. He advised that it would be necessary to take $3.5 million 

from the fund balance to balance the budget, which could negatively affect our bond rating in the 

future. He also commented that the Fire Department budget has increased in recent years due to a 

shortage of volunteers and the need to hire full-time personnel. 

16



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 6  

August 15, 2023   

 

 

13. Comments from Commissioners and/or Staff 

Commissioner Brown thanked County Manager Van Haute for explaining how our budget, fund 

balance, and bond rating are all connected. He expressed hope that the taxpayers will vote yes on 

the bond issue for road paving. 

 

14. Comments from the Public 

Mr. Tom Thompson reminded the board that he submitted a list of priorities after the last 

meeting and hoped they were reviewed. He commented that the hospital is second only to public 

safety and thanked the board for the proposed increase for the hospital. He stressed the need to 

keep the hospital out of financial distress and asked the board to consider fully funding their 

budget request. 

 

Mr. Dale Bills echoed Mr. Gray's comments from earlier in the meeting regarding citizens on 

fixed incomes. He commented that property values and taxes have gone up. He asked the board 

to be more frugal and cautioned everyone to watch the school board budget as well. 

 

Mr. Charles Ray asked if the documents displayed were available to the public. County Manager 

Van Haute advised that they are available, and requests could be sent to Finance Director Cook.  

 

Ms. Jennifer Ray suggested the county try harder to get more volunteer firefighters. She 

commented that everyone is being hit with higher bills and assessments have skyrocketed.  

 

Regular Business Meeting 
15. Public Comments 

Mr. Don Hill commented on the proposed short term rental ordinances and asked the county to 

include a short paragraph that addresses homeowners’ associations that have covenants that 

restrict short term rentals. 

 

Mr. Harley Wood commented on short term rentals in the R-1R zoning district.  

 

Ms. Erin Olson questioned the definition of the word "expire" in the proposed new short term 

rental ordinance. She also suggested a higher application fee and contacting the legislature 

regarding the hotel-motel tax percentage given to the Chamber of Commerce. She expressed 

desire to continue the moratorium until District 3 is represented. 

 

Mr. Mike Sleeth commented that short term rentals should never have been allowed in the R-1R 

zoning district and that 400 total short term rentals are too many. 

 

Mr. Phil Armstrong thanked the board for what they do and expressed concern about short term 

rentals and covenants. He requested the ordinance include alerts about restrictive covenants. 

 

Mr. Jim Berardicurti commented against the current proposed short term rentals an requested that 

no decisions be made until District 3 is represented.  

 

17



Draft Minutes Page 5 of 6  

August 15, 2023   

 

Ms. Peggy McWhorter requested a higher license fee for short term rentals and suggested 

waiting until the new ordinances have proven to work before allowing additional short term 

rentals. She requested the percentage of short term rentals located on lake properties. 

 

Mr. Stephen Mallinson commented on the negative impact of short term rentals and against the 

grandfathering of short term rentals in the R-1R zoning district.  

 

Mr. Peter Crocket commented that timing and oversight were not considered during the 

resurfacing of Old Phoenix Road. 

 

Pastor Joe Ezzard signed in to speak but declined.  

  

16. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - August 4, 2023 Regular meeting (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

17. Jimmy Davis Park Update (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute provided an update on recent work at Jimmy Davis Park.  

 Lower parking lot will be paved soon.  

 The well is in place and irrigation will be connected to it as soon as power is turned on. 

 There has been no interest from local contractors to provide metal fencing. The county 

will order the material and bring in welders and make it ourselves. 

 Security cameras have been installed and are synced with Putnam County Sheriff’s 

Office and Eatonton Police Department. 

 

Commissioner Brown asked about a donation of picnic tables from the school system. County 

Manager Van Haute advised they were not suitable for outdoor use. 

 

Reports/Announcements 
18. County Manager Report 

None 

 

19. County Attorney Report 

None 

 

20. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: thanked everyone for attending tonight and expressed his desire for 

full house attendance at every meeting. He told the audience that commissioners want to hear 

from their constituents.  

 

Commissioner Brown: echoed Commissioner McElhenney’s comments and advised that 

commissioners do research issues and listen to the people. 

 

 

18



Draft Minutes Page 6 of 6  

August 15, 2023   

 

Commissioner Wooten: thanked Public Works for all their hard work and advised that they are 

out now doing storm cleanup. He commented that Putnam County has good employees that need 

to be paid well. He stressed that there is no internal interest on this board other than doing the 

right thing for the people of the county. He reminded everyone that the Special Purpose Local 

Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) is paid by everyone, not just property owners. He stressed that there 

were no secret meetings held and that he was somewhat offended by those accusations. He 

thanked everyone for attending and voicing their opinions. 

 

Chairman Sharp: thanked the staff for the marvelous job they do. He also thanked the board for 

their hard work and thanked the citizens for attending tonight.  

 

Executive Session 
21. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Executive Session not needed. 

 

22. Reopen meeting following Executive Session 

Executive Session not held. 

  

23. Authorize Chairman to sign Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Executive Session not held. 

  

24. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

Executive Session not held.  

 

Closing 
25. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 7:32 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      B. W. “Bill” Sharp 

County Clerk       Chairman 

19



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3  

August 25, 2023   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, August 25, 2023 ◊ 10:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, August 25, 2023 at approximately 

10:00 a.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Deputy County Clerk Donna Todd 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Sharp called the meeting to order at approximately 10:01 a.m.  

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Invocation 

County Attorney Nelson gave the invocation. 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance  

Commissioner Wooten led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3  

August 25, 2023   

 

Called Meeting 
4. Approval of FY24 Budget and Authorization for Chairman to sign 2024 Budget Resolution 

(staff-CM & Fin) 

Mr. Peter Crockett commented on the budgeted amount of short term rental tax going to the 

Chamber of Commerce. 

County Manager Van Haute reviewed the proposed budget. 

Motion to approve the FY24 Budget as presented and authorize the Chairman to sign the 

2024 Budget Resolution. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of budget and resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

5. EPWSA Presentation and possible action (BS) 

Mr. Brice Doolittle, ESG Operations Project Manager, presented concepts for review for 

rebranding the lettering on the elevated water storage tanks. EPWSA (Eatonton Putnam Water 

and Sewer Authority) preferred the version 1 lettering. The county tank, located behind Central 

Georgia Technical College, will be painted white with blue letters and the city tank will be silver 

with blue letters. The county tank will say welcome to Putnam County with EPWSA underneath. 

The city tank will say Welcome to Eatonton with EPWSA underneath. The City Council liked 

version 1 as well. The Commissioners also agreed with version 1. 

 

Mr. Doolittle thanked the board for contributing part of Putnam County’s ARPA (American 

Rescue Plan Act) funds. EPWSA received a $6.3 million grant for water infrastructure 

improvements with EPWSA putting in a $2.2 million match and the county contributing 

$600,000 and the City of Eatonton, $400,000. Mr. Doolittle reviewed the projects for which this 

grant money will be used. He further reported that since March of 2020, 500 new customers have 

been added. EPWSA has been working with the city fire department to test fire hydrants and will 

be fixing the broken ones. 

Motion to approve version 1 for water tower lettering. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of tank lettering made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

6. Discussion and possible action on Waste Management contract (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute advised that increases in cost with Waste Management last year 

were $600,000. The county’s contract is set to expire on December 31, 2023, and we must 

provide a 120 day notice if not planning to renew. County Manager Van Haute requested to put 

trash service out for bid for a potential opportunity to save money. Waste Management is no 

longer the only vendor, but they do have the only landfill. A new vendor would use the same 

terms and conditions as we have now and the same hours for convenience centers.  

Motion to authorize staff to request bids on a waste management contract and provide 

notice to Waste Management. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 
 

21



Draft Called Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3  

August 25, 2023   

 

Closing 
7. Adjournment 

County Manager Van Haute thanked the board for the smooth budget cycle.  

Commissioner McElhenney thanked the staff for the work on the budget and for finding ways to 

save money. 

Commissioner Brown thanked County Manager Van Haute for always looking for ways to save 

money and get best possible service. 

Commissioner Wooten thanked County Manager Van Haute, Finance Director Cook and all 

involved with the budget process.  

Chairman Sharp thanked the staff and commissioners for their work on the budget. 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:41 a.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      B. W. “Bill” Sharp 

County Clerk       Chairman 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



File Attachments for Item:

11. Discussion and possible action on Fire Department boat houses (staff-Fire)

70



Customer Name:

1740 Dawsonville Hwy., Gainesville, GA 30501

P: 770-536-0189  |  F: 770-536-4444 Permit #:

E-MAIL:  SALES@MARTINDOCKSINC.COM Location Code:

WWW.MARTINDOCKSINC.COM

101,267.00$       

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

1,000.00$           

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

600.00$              

12,239.00$         

3,700.00$           

19,500.00$         

INCL

GRAND TOTAL: 138,306.00$    

Party of the Second Part shall pay $138,306.00 to Party of the First Part.

Party of the Second Part hereby agrees to pay a deposit of $45,000.00.

Party of the First Part

Martin Docks, Inc. Representative

Party of the Second Part

Putnam County Fire Department

Deposits are not refundable unless otherwise stated in this contract. Balance is due upon delivery of dock.

In Witness Whereof, the Parties have hereunto executed this contract in duplicate, each copy to be considered as the original, on the day and year first 

above written.

12500# Floatair boat lift with 4 Relief hoses for faster let down with (Stainless Steel Hose Covering)

12' x 34' Boat Slip 

Metal siding and Gable Roof Metal will be 26 Gauge

1- 24" Exhaust Fan Temperature Controled

6' X 60' Aluminum Bridge Ramp 

Pipe Anchor System:2-5"x21' Galv. Poles  & 2-3200# Winches with 30'x5/16" SS Cable per winch 

Azek Harvest Collection PVC Decking will be (Slate Gray or Brownstone ) in color

Azek Harvest Collection PVC Decking will be installed on the bottom of Dock & Ramp Crossways

Cable Anchor System: 2-3200# Winches with 125'x5/16" Stainless Steel Cable per winch & 4 Shore Anchors

Black Vertical Bumpers on poles in slip, sides of dock & Black Corner Bumpers on Lakeside Corners & Entry of slip

Black Bumper Stripping 4 sides of dock

20' x 42' Gable Roof Built on a 3" in 12" Pitch

16' 6" Of clearance from water to center of slip entry

Gables will be (                                         ) in color

Walls will be (                        ) In Color

36" Metal Door with Lock

NEW DOCK AGREEMENT

Lake Oconee

28' x 46' Gable Roof  All Aluminum Frame  (Enclosed Dock with Metal Siding)

Frame: 10" Aluminum Channel 3/16" Thick with 4" Ribbed Square Tubing Roof Post & 5 Roof Beams

WITNESSETH:  It is hereby mutually agreed between the parties that party of the First Part hereby agrees to furnish all material and labor required and necessary to construct the structure as 

described below for the Party of the Second Part.  All legal issues and lawsuits will be handled in the state of GA, County of Hall.

Any funds over $7,500.00 (Seventy-Five Hundred Dollars) charged on credit card will be charged a 2.75% convenience fee added to total of contract.

It is also mutually agreed between the Parties that this contract is binding, and that the structure described herein shall remain the property of the Party of the First Part until final payment has been 

made.  Party of the Second Part will be responsible for any attorney or collections fees involved with collecting their debt.  Party of the Second part is also responsible for all permitting and 

understands Governing Body regulations for Lake Sidney Lanier or any other body of water and that any deviations from these regulations is the responsibility of the Party of Second Part.  Party of 

Second Part acknowledges that Party of the First Part follows these regulations unless asked to deviate by Party of the Second Part and Party of Second Part will be liable if the requested deviation 

from the regulations is punishable in any way. Party of the Second Part shall be responsible for all maintenance, upkeep, adjustments, and repairs to final product unless explicitly listed in warranty, 

guarantee, or separate maintenance contract.

This agreement entered August 1, 2023 by and between MARTIN DOCKS, INC, hereinafter referred to as the Party of the First Part, and Putnam County Fire 

Department, and hereinafter referred to as the Party of the Second Part.

Putnam County Fire Department

Chief T. McClain

PRICE BELOW INCLUDES TAXES & DELIVERY                                        Quote Good For 30 Days

No Power on Dock 

71

http://www.martindocksinc.com/


60 ft

6 ft12 ft

34 ft

12 ft

8 ft

8 ft

4 ft

4 ft

28 ft

46 ft

20 ft

42 ft

Gable Roof Line and Wall  Line

8 ft

4 ft

72



Customer Name:

1740 Dawsonville Hwy., Gainesville, GA 30501

P: 770-536-0189  |  F: 770-536-4444 Permit #:

E-MAIL:  SALES@MARTINDOCKSINC.COM Location Code:

WWW.MARTINDOCKSINC.COM

101,267.00$       

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

1,000.00$           

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

INCL

600.00$              

6,641.00$           

3,700.00$           

19,500.00$         

INCL

GRAND TOTAL: 132,708.00$    

PRICE BELOW INCLUDES TAXES & DELIVERY                                        Quote Good For 30 Days

No Power on Dock 

Putnam County Fire Department

Chief T. McClain

NEW DOCK AGREEMENT

Lake Sinclair

28' x 46' Gable Roof  All Aluminum Frame  (Enclosed Dock with Metal Siding)

Frame: 10" Aluminum Channel 3/16" Thick with 4" Ribbed Square Tubing Roof Post & 5 Roof Beams

WITNESSETH:  It is hereby mutually agreed between the parties that party of the First Part hereby agrees to furnish all material and labor required and necessary to construct the structure as 

described below for the Party of the Second Part.  All legal issues and lawsuits will be handled in the state of GA, County of Hall.

Any funds over $7,500.00 (Seventy-Five Hundred Dollars) charged on credit card will be charged a 2.75% convenience fee added to total of contract.

It is also mutually agreed between the Parties that this contract is binding, and that the structure described herein shall remain the property of the Party of the First Part until final payment has been 

made.  Party of the Second Part will be responsible for any attorney or collections fees involved with collecting their debt.  Party of the Second part is also responsible for all permitting and 

understands Governing Body regulations for Lake Sidney Lanier or any other body of water and that any deviations from these regulations is the responsibility of the Party of Second Part.  Party of 

Second Part acknowledges that Party of the First Part follows these regulations unless asked to deviate by Party of the Second Part and Party of Second Part will be liable if the requested deviation 

from the regulations is punishable in any way. Party of the Second Part shall be responsible for all maintenance, upkeep, adjustments, and repairs to final product unless explicitly listed in warranty, 

guarantee, or separate maintenance contract.

This agreement entered August 1, 2023 by and between MARTIN DOCKS, INC, hereinafter referred to as the Party of the First Part, and Putnam County Fire 

Department, and hereinafter referred to as the Party of the Second Part.

20' x 42' Gable Roof Built on a 3" in 12" Pitch

16' 6" Of clearance from water to center of slip entry

Gables will be (                                         ) in color

Walls will be (                        ) In Color

36" Metal Door with Lock

12' x 34' Boat Slip 

Metal siding and Gable Roof Metal will be 26 Gauge

1- 24" Exhaust Fan Temperature Controled

6' X 30' Aluminum Bridge Ramp 

Pipe Anchor System:2-5"x21' Galv. Poles  & 2-3200# Winches with 30'x5/16" SS Cable per winch 

Azek Harvest Collection PVC Decking will be (Slate Gray or Brownstone ) in color

Azek Harvest Collection PVC Decking will be installed on the bottom of Dock & Ramp Crossways

Cable Anchor System: 2-3200# Winches with 125'x5/16" Stainless Steel Cable per winch & 4 Shore Anchors

Black Vertical Bumpers on poles in slip, sides of dock & Black Corner Bumpers on Lakeside Corners & Entry of slip

Black Bumper Stripping 4 sides of dock

Party of the Second Part shall pay $132,708.00 to Party of the First Part.

Party of the Second Part hereby agrees to pay a deposit of $43,000.00.

Party of the First Part

Martin Docks, Inc. Representative

Party of the Second Part

Putnam County Fire Department

Deposits are not refundable unless otherwise stated in this contract. Balance is due upon delivery of dock.

In Witness Whereof, the Parties have hereunto executed this contract in duplicate, each copy to be considered as the original, on the day and year first 

above written.

12500# Floatair boat lift with 4 Relief hoses for faster let down with (Stainless Steel Hose Covering)

73

http://www.martindocksinc.com/


30 ft

6 ft12 ft

34 ft

12 ft

8 ft

8 ft

4 ft

4 ft

28 ft

46 ft

20 ft

42 ft

Gable Roof Line and Wall  Line

8 ft

4 ft

74



75



File Attachments for Item:

12. Setting of Qualifying Fees for 2023 Special Election (staff-Finance)

76



  

 

 

 

Putnam County Finance Department 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite A 

Eatonton, GA 31024 

Phone (706) 485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 

          

 
 

TO:    Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

 

FR:     Linda Cook, Finance Director 

 

DT:        August 29, 2023 

 

RE: Establishing Qualifying Fee 

 

 

The Board of County Commissioners is required by O.C.G.A. 21-2-131, to fix and publish qualifying fees 

for county offices for a general primary, nonpartisan election, or general election.  

 

For the offices of members of the county governing authority, or Board of Commissioners, the qualifying fee 

is 3% of the base salary established by local Act of the General Assembly, and does not include training, 

supplements, or cost-of-living increases. The supervisor of Elections & Registration has reviewed the 

following fee. 
 

 

 

 

Position 
Term 

Expires 
Base 

Salary 
Qualifying 

Fee Notes 

District #3 Commissioner 12/31/26 7,800.00 234.00 Local Law (3%  of base salary) 

 

77

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


File Attachments for Item:

13. Discussion and possible action on 112 Gloria Drive (staff-CM & CA)

78



79



File Attachments for Item:

14. Ratification of the Board of Education Mill Rate and Authorization for Chairman to sign Tax Levy 

Resolution (staff-CM & Finance)

80



81



82



83



84



File Attachments for Item:

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2023 Mill Rate for Incorporated and 

Unincorporated County Maintenance and Operation (staff-CM & Finance)

85



86



87



88



File Attachments for Item:

16. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2023 Mill Rate for Special Service District 

(staff-CM & Finance)

89



90


	Top
	Item #8.	2023-09-01 BOC STR Code PH
	230824 Short Term Rental Rewrite2 - Putnam

	Item #10.	2023-09-01 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 08-15-2023 BOC Minutes
	DRAFT 08-25-2023 BOC Called Meeting Minutes
	GDOT FTA5311 FY24 Transit Operating-Capital-MM Contract2_Printed

	Item #11.	2023-09-01 BOC Fire Boat Houses
	28 x 46 Lake Oconee
	Lake Oconee Dock Drawing pdf
	28 x 46 Lake Sinclair
	Lake Sinclair Dock Drawing PDF
	Boathouse photo2-compressed

	Item #12.	2023-09-01 BOC Qualifying Fee
	Qualifying Fees Memo - District 3

	Item #13.	2023-09-01 BOC Gloria Drive
	Gloria Drive

	Item #14.	2023-09-01 BOC BOE Mill Rate
	BOE Tax Levy

	Item #15.	2023-09-01 BOC Incorporated and Unincorporated Mill Rate
	Incorporated and Unincorporated Tax Levy

	Item #16.	2023-09-01 BOC SSD Mill Rate
	SSD Tax Levy

	Bottom



